American Canal Society Canal Index

CANAL ) o STATUS ACS
Guyandotte River Navigation Abandoned
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HISTORICAL SIGNIFICANCE: o ]
There is little left today of the Guyandotte Slackwater Navigation, because in 1878, the

Corps of Engineers cleared a channel through the remains of what Dr. Johnson has called
“the worst slackwater systemever built in America.”
The project would have been more successful if, in 1850, the Guyandotte Navigation Ua'od
Company had followed the state engineer’s original recommendation for lock and dam (EVERETT'S)
locations, and had built the locks of stone to withstand the devastating floods. Instead, to
save money the locks and dams were built of wood cribs filled with stone; and the heights
were increased and the locations changed in order to require fewer of them. It was soon
discovered that the Ohio River did not back water up to Lock and Dam 1 during the dry
season; that Lock and Dam 3 did not back water all the way up to No. 4 at Salt Rock, nor No.
4 up to Lock 5 at the Falls of the Guyan; nor did the company have clear title to the land! The
company went bankrupt and left the unfinished works to the elements. L. & D. 4 (SMITH CREEK)
In 1853 the Guyandotte Land Company, owners of three million acres in the valley, took L. & D. 5(SALT ROCK)—
control. They repaired and finished the works, built a new lock and dam between Nos. 4 and BEAR CREEK
5, added a dam to the lock at the falls, and started barging coal down to the Ohio. To
accommodate the Pittsburgh coal boat trade, the locks were 26' by 142’ in the chamber.
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PHYSICAL DESCRIPTION: il
Unfortunately, the locks were still of wood and subject to damage by every flood. After the

great flood of 1861 the lock and dam navigation was finally abandoned for the last time. A

survey party in 1875 found that only traces of the works remained, and that navigation on the

Guyandotte had reverted to running coal and log rafts down the river during freshets, and BRANCHLAND o
polina supplies upstream in pushboats.

In 1878-1883 the Corps cleared a channel for the rafts and pushboats for a distance of 116 miles - to about 40 miles above Logan. They cleared
away the old dams and the snags and constructed wing dams and sluices. At several mill dams, boats had to portage or wait for high water. This
channel maintenance ceased forever in 1904 with the arrival of the Guyandotte Valley Railroad, now the C&O.

In spite of the removal of the dams in the 1880’s there must still be remains of crib locks and dams in the banks, exposed from time to time by
erosion and low water, and some of the lockhouses may have survived, perhaps moved to new locations. Perhaps there is even a sunken pushboat
somewhere. Canoeists would do well to keep an eye out for these things.

According to the company records, Lock and Dam 1 (No.1) was at Everett’s Place, 1 1/4 miles above the mouth, with the lock on the right (east)
bank; Dam 2 was just above the mouth of Mud River (Mile 7, Lock on left bank); Dam 3, the first to be completed, was at Dusenberry’s Dam at Mile
12 3/4, perhaps near the present town of Martha (lock on left bank, mill on right bank); Dam 4 was just below the Mouth of Smith Creek (Mile 18, lock
on east bank); Dam 5 was at the site of the old bridge at Salt Rock (Mile 24, lock on left bank); and Dam 6 was at the Falls of Guyan (Mile 30, lock on
right bank).

According to a detailed article in the August 27, 1939 HUNTINGTON HERALD-ADV, there were also locks and dams at the mouth of Bear Creek,
and just above Branchland. A dam is indeed still remembered from around 1900, just above the bridge and creek at Branchland, but there is no
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mention of it in the company’s annual reports.

At Salt Rock, traces of the old dam were uncovered in 1898 when the stone piers of a bridge (since replaced) were under construction. Mr. Russell
Harbour remembered that his Father, Curtis .D. Harbour, supplied cut-stone for the west pier and (being paid by the piece) inscribed each of his
stones with a capital “H”. Sure enough, one of the stones, used as rip-rap under the new highway bridge, is so inscribed. This may be the only
mason’s mark in America whose mason is known. One of the stones ought to be labeled and saved in a museum.

As for the Falls of the Guyan, which even in 1824 had shifted position leaving a mill high and dry, it has now disappeared along with the locks and
dams of the Guyandotte Navigation Company.

For further details see MEN MOUNTAINS AND RIVERS, and the Annual Reports of the Virginia Board of Public Works and of the Corps of
Engineers. The help of Jerry Sutphin and Mr. Russell Harbour of Salt Rock is gratefully acknowledged.
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